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Institutes of Technology: 

Frequently Asked Questions 

 

SCOPE 

 

Why are IoTs needed? 

There is a chronic shortage of high-skilled technicians below graduate level (Levels 4/5) in 
England1, with few people undertaking higher-level skills training (of the 75,000 people 
participating in Advanced Learner Loans in 2014/15, only 5,000 were at Level 4), while 
industry demand for these skills is growing, driven by the pace of technological change. By 
2020 we estimate we will need around 300,000 trained technicians entering the labour 
market annually.  
 
This shortage is partly due to the investment required to teach STEM subjects, providers’ 
focus on delivering lower level qualifications and learners’ choices being limited by lack of a 
quality offer with a clear route to employment.   
 

What is an IoT? 

IoTs will complement and add value to technical education provision, building where 

possible on existing education and training assets.  They will have a clear identity and will 

share the following critical success factors: 

1. Strong employer engagement in governance and leadership as well as the 

design and delivery of the curriculum;  

2. Specialise in teaching technical Routes set out in the Post-16 Skills Plan, 

focussed towards STEM subjects; 

3. Offer high quality provision – in teaching, facilities and equipment – at levels 3, 4 

and 5; 

4. Local focus to deliver qualifications and apprenticeships of value that meet the 

skills needs of local employers;  

5. Use the IoT status to distinguish themselves and raise the prestige of technical 

training in the local area; 

6. Work collaboratively with other providers to avoid duplication by building on high-

quality provision in an area; and   

7. Be financially sustainable. 

                                                

 

1
 OECD, IPPR research  
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By meeting these success factors, we expect IoTs to deliver improved outcomes in  the 

quality and occupational relevance of higher-level technical training and to increase and  

widen participation at Levels 4 and 5.   

 

We are not defining ‘local focus’ as we will leave it for bidders to decide the right area 

boundary for their proposal which makes sense for their business case in terms of learner 

number forecasts, local labour market, provider landscape and partnerships in the proposal, 

as well as travel to learn distances. 

 

We expect the first IoTs to open in 2018.  They should be financially sustainable once fully 

operational. 

 

How many new institutions will be funded through this process and will that be 

sufficient to fill the skill gaps? 

From our market testing and the funding available we estimate an initial network of around 
10-15 IoTs but this may vary depending on the scale, quality and number of bids received. 

 
Our primary focus is on achieving quality over quantity, with a high bar set in terms of 
assessment with the emphasis on proposals that demonstrate sustainable delivery and a 
step change in provision. 
 

Is there a preferred delivery model? 

Given the nationwide variance in skills needs and provision, we are not prescribing a ‘one 

size fits all’ delivery model but will offer flexibility for bidders to adopt models best suited to 

their local needs.  We have worked with a number of organisations to test the viability of 

different delivery and governance models and examples included: 

 extending technical education provision from within an existing high-performing 

college while providing for liability to be limited contractually or through funding 

provisions, or through a legally separate subsidiary;  

 delivery through partnerships of FE and HE though a range of legal structures such 

as a Joint Venture or Special Purpose Vehicle using a company limited by 

guarantee;  

 a group of employers partnering with an education provider to create an IoT; and  

 establishing a wholly new institution where there is evidence that existing providers 

cannot meet higher level STEM skills needs. 

 
 

WHO CAN BID? 

 

We expect the majority of proposals to emerge from the Area Review process which has 

stimulated many local areas to consider how an IoT could best be established to meet 

their specific needs. In most cases, these are based on a FE College working 

collaboratively and innovatively across further and higher education and industry usually 
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as part of a consortium.  In these cases, bids can be submitted by the lead partner of a 

consortium, who could be either an FE College, HEI, Private Training Provider or 

Employer Consortia representing more than one employer; or by the LEP or Combined 

Authority.  

 

Proposals would need to be supported by: 

 in most cases an FE College, unless there is robust evidence that this is not 

appropriate for the local area 

 the lead authority for local economic policy to confirm fit with strategic economic 

priorities (either the Local Economic Partnership (LEP) or Combined Authority). 

 local employers identified as potential "anchor partners".   

However, we recognise that in some areas there may not be an appropriate local FE 

College provider for the type of provision envisaged.  Where an FE College does not 

feature in a proposal, the application will need to be supported by the LEP or Combined 

Authority who will need to to provide clear evidence for the choice of delivery partners, 

drawing on Area Review recommendations or emerging conclusions as well as underlying 

evidence. 

 

We would not expect to see competing bids which duplicate provision in an area and we 

would expect the requirement that bids are supported by the LEP or Combined Authority to 

ensure this does not happen. 

 

 

OFFER TO THE MARKET 

 

What are IoTs expected to deliver?  

The IoT should meet local economic needs for higher technical skills by strengthening and 

growing provision to fill the gaps in the market.  The detailed offer will vary from area to 

area but is expected to be based around the following: 

1. boosting provision at Levels 4 and 5 in STEM subjects; 

2. developing a strong pipeline of provision at Level 3 either as part of the IoT offer or else 

with clear pathways of progression to the IoT’s level 4/5 provision; and  

3. up-skilling and re-skilling the existing workforce, to keep pace with rapid technological 

change; and 

4. using innovative modes of delivery. 

This will help raise the prestige of technical education so that it is a credible high quality 

alternative to academic routes.  By defining the features of an IoT and the outcomes we 

expect them to deliver we want to encourage new partnerships between key local 

stakeholders who can help  address local and national  skills gaps.  These partnerships can 

build upon existing technical education provision and leverage assets where appropriate to 

secure the step change which is required.   
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What do you expect IoTs to deliver at Level 4 and 5? 

We would expect an IoT primarily to deliver a mix of: 

 Higher Apprenticeships; 

 Courses for technical qualifications eligible for Advanced Learner Loans; 

 Courses for HE Qualifications i.e. HNC/HNDs;  

 Bespoke courses for local employers; and 

 To be lead delivery partners for the new technical routes when they are introduced 

from 2019. 

 

What do you expect IoTs to deliver at Level 3? 

 

We would expect IoTs to either deliver through a commissioning or partnership 

arrangement with another provider or else offer a smaller quantum of level three provision 

as the focus of IoTs should be at levels 4-5.  We would expect an IoT to deliver at level 3 a 

mix of: 

 

 Advanced Apprenticeships; 

 Courses for technical qualifications with aeligible for Advanced Learner Loans (or 

legal entitlement to first full L3 under the AEB); 

 Bespoke courses for local employers; and 

 To be lead delivery partners for the new technical routes when they are introduced 

from 2019. 

 

What qualifications are defined as STEM? 

We would expect IoTs to deliver existing qualifications aligned to STEM subjects which 

have a high level of recognition from employers and require specialist teaching skills and/or 

equipment. 

In the medium term, once the Skills Plan reforms are implemented, we would expect IoTs to 

deliver the STEM qualifications which align primarily to the following routes: 

 Engineering & Manufacturing; 

 Construction; 

 Health & Science; 

 Digital; 

 Transport and logistics* 

*This applies to Apprenticeships only. 

 

Does the curriculum have to be wholly STEM? 

No. We would expect the majority of the provision to be STEM based and will be assessed 

on this basis, but the aim is also for occupational competency so we would expect to 
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include training in soft skills around management and leadership.  Bidders should be aware 

of the requirement for students aged 16-18 enrolled in a study programme of 150 hrs or 

more who do not yet have a GCSE Grade C or above in English and Maths to continue to 

study these subjects. 

 

LOCAL AREA FOCUS 

 

Will priority be given to certain regions or areas? 

Our aim would be to prioritise bids with robust evidence and analysis of technical skills 
shortages. IoTs can also make a significant contribution to social mobility so we would 
welcome applications to deliver provision in the recently announced Opportunity Areas and 
other areas where social mobility is low.        
 

What does local focus mean in this context? 

There is no definition as such as it would depend on the business case in terms of pipeline 

of learners,  location of the provision and travel to learn distances, but we would expect it to 

focus around a LEP area as a minimum and could be regional if that worked with the 

provision offer and business model put forward. 

 

Can an area submit bids for more than one IoT? 

Where the underpinning evidence base justifies more than one IoT (eg travel to learn 

catchment areas), we would expect areas to look at innovative delivery options (eg hub and 

spoke models) for a single co-ordinated bid rather than two independent bids. 

 

 

REGULATION, STATUS AND FUNDING 

 

How will IoT status be awarded? 

Successful bidders will be awarded the IoT status. An accountable body will need to be 

awarded IoT status and capital funding who in most cases would be the newly formed IoT 

or else the FE College as a proxy. Equally the IoT status can be revoked if the outcomes 

stated in the business plan have not been achieved or the quality of provision is below the 

expected standard 

 

How and who will regulate IoTs? 

As publically funded providers of education and training, IoTs will be subject to oversight 

and inspection arrangements comparable to those that already exist for other FE and HE 

providers, as provided by the Skills Funding Agency, Ofsted, Education Funding Agency, 

HEFCE and the Quality Assurance Agency.  The detail of those arrangements is being 



 

          Issued: February 2017  

developed in parallel to the IoT call for proposals. Those IoTs offering HE provision would 

be subject to the regulatory regime of the Office for Students, which will include quality 

assurance by a designated body. 

 

What is the required legal structure for an IoT? 

This is an outcome-based competition, so an IoT could be established either as a separate 

legal entity or could operate autonomously within an existing organisation, provided it had: 

 a distinct brand which both learners and employers could identify with,  

 separate financial reporting arrangements and  

 robust governance to monitor and enforce agreed outcomes. 

 

 

Over what period will the funding be available, when should the IoT be open? 

The funding allocation for IoTs is £170M capital allocation available until March 2021, with 

the first IoTs expected to be introduced in September 2018. We would expect to see 

evidence of commitment from employers to help make the model viable, either through 

match funding or in-kind contributions.    

 

 

FIT WITH OTHER POLICIES 

 

How will we ensure it fits with the Area Review process? 

 

We would expect any proposal to align with Area Review recommendations as well as 

ensure that the underlying LEP economic evidence supports the IoT proposal.  

 

How do IoTs fit with the wider skills reform agenda? 

 

IoTs are a key part of the government’s wider technical education reforms, such as 

reaching our target for expanding apprenticeships and fulfilling lifetime learning objectives 

by working with employers on workforce upskilling.   

 

IoTs also have a significant contribution to make on the social mobility agenda. The local 

focus of IoTs aligns with policy on Opportunity Areas and the emphasis on place-based 

opportunities covered under the Industrial Strategy.  We would welcome applications to 

deliver provision in the recently announced Opportunity Areas and other areas where social 

mobility is low.      

 

How does the Skills Plan Implementation and the introduction of the 15 Routes within 

technical education  fit with IoTs? 

 
The new qualifications aligned to the routes in the Post-16 Skills Plan are due for 

introduction from 2019/20, while the first IoTs are expected to open in 2018. 
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We expect IoTs to be at the forefront of development and delivery of the new qualifications, 

working with government on the early adoption of the new Sainsbury technical routes. This 

would be mutually beneficial, as IoTs will have strong links with employers, industry-

standard equipment and an industry-fresh workforce.  

 

What is the relationship with National Colleges Programme? 

IoTs will complement and build links to the National Colleges as employer-led institutions 

delivering higher-level technical skills, but will have the following differences: 

 IoTs will predominantly  focus on local rather than national skills needs 

 IoTs will focus on broad STEM provision (eg manufacturing, engineering, 

construction) rather than a single sector. 

 IoT provision will be below degree level (levels 3-5) while National Colleges provision 

includes degree level (levels 4-6). 

 

How will Higher Education Institutions fit within the IoT programme? 

 

We are aware that many Higher Education institutions have excellent links with local 

industry and their Local Enterprise Partnerships, and we would expect that some will want 

to explore the innovative possibilities offered by IoTs to develop L4/5 provision and build on 

existing facilities.  

 

What is the relationship with UTCs? 

We would expect there to be clear progression pathways from local UTCs to IoTs. UTCs 

could form part of the bidding consortia for IoTs but we would not expect that to change the 

IoT focus on Level 3-5 higher-technical education and being aimed at 16+ learners.  

 

 

COMPETITION 

 
 
Who is going to assess the IoT proposals? 

Officials from a multi-disciplinary expert team from the Department for Education (from the 

fields of finance, legal, commercial, strategy and policy) as well as external panel members 

with education, financial and industrial expertise. 

 

Is the competitive process for funding or IoT status? 

Both, but IoT status can be assessed for a proposal and awarded without capital funding if 

it is not required. 
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What is the timeline for this process? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


